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PUBLIC MATTER

STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA
OFFICE OF CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
GREGORY P. DRESSER, No. 136532
INTERIM CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
MELANIE J. LAWRENCE, No. 230102
ACTING DEPUTY CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
SUSAN CHAN, No. 233229
ACTING ASSISTANT CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
SUSAN I. KAGAN, No. 214209
SENIOR TRIAL COUNSEL
180 Howard Street
San Francisco, California 94105-1639
Telephone: (415) 538-2037

FILED
OCT 11 2016

STATE BAR COURT CLERK’S OFFICE
SAN FRANCISCO

STATE BAR COURT

HEARING DEPARTMENT - SAN FRANCISCO

In the Matter of:

DEMAS W. YAN,
No. 257854,

A Member of the State Bar

Case Nos. 14-O-05531;
16-O-10733;
16-O-13600

NOTICE OF DISCIPLINARY CHARGES

NOTICE - FAILURE TO RESPOND!

IF YOU FAIL TO FILE A WRITTEN ANSWER TO THIS NOTICE
WITHIN 20 DAYS AFTER SERVICE, OR IF YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AT
THE STATE BAR COURT TRIAL:

(1) YOUR DEFAULT WILL BE ENTERED;
(2) YOUR STATUS WILL BE CHANGED TO INACTIVE AND YOU

WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO PRACTICE LAW;
(3) YOU WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO PARTICIPATE FURTHER IN

THESE PROCEEDINGS UNLESS YOU MAKE A TIMELY MOTION
AND THE DEFAULT IS SET ASIDE, AND;

(4) YOU SHALL BE SUBJECT TO ADDITIONAL DISCIPLINE.
SPECIFICALLY, IF YOU FAIL TO TIMELY MOVE TO SET ASIDE
OR VACATE YOUR DEFAULT, THIS COURT WILL ENTER AN
ORDER RECOMMENDING YOUR DISBARMENT WITHOUT
FURTHER HEARING OR PROCEEDING. SEE RULE 5.80 ET SEQ.,
RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA.

kwiktag ~ 211 096 331
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The State Bar of Califomia alleges:

JURISDICTION

1. DEMAS YAN ("respondent") was admitted to the practice of law in the State of

California on December 1, 2008, was a member at all times pertinent to these charges, and is

currently a member of the State Bar of California.

COUNT ONE
("The Chenery Property")

Case No. 14-O-05531
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(c)

[Maintaining an Unjust Action]

2. By pursuing 16 frivolous actions over a five-year period, as set forth in the December

23, 2013 decision of the Bankruptcy Court determining respondent to be a vexatious litigant in Ix

re Demas Wai Yan, U.S. Bankruptcy Court for Northern Dist. of California, Case No. 04-33526

[Adv. Proc. No. 12-3129] ("Vexatious Litigant Determination") [A true and correct copy of the

Vexatious Litigant Determination is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference

as if fully set forth herein], respondent failed to counsel or maintain such action, proceedings, or

defenses only as appear to respondent legal or just, in willful violation of Business and

Professions Code, section 6068(c), as follows:

Action

Fu v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-10-501321

Nature of Action

Pre-petition claims

against Stella Chen

[cross-complaint]

Why Action Frivolous

Claims previously released under

2008 settlement agreement between

Trustee and Stella Chen

Yan v. Fu, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-12-522566

Pre-petition claims

against Stella Chen

Claims previously released under

2008 settlement agreement between

Trustee and Stella Chen
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Action

Yan v. Lei, San Francisco

County Superior Court,

Case No. CGC-07-464671

Yan v. Lei, San Francisco

County Superior Court,

Case No. CGC-07-467500

Yan v. Lei, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-08-471333

Fu v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-10-501321

[cross-complaint]

Yah v. Fu, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-12-522566

Fu v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-10-501321

[cross-complaint]

Nature of Action

Pre-petition claims

against Tony Fu

Pre-petition claims

against Tony Fu

Pre-petition claims

against Tony Fu

Pre-petition claims

against Tony Fu

Pre-petition claims

against Tony Fu

Pre-petition claims

against Wei Suen

-3-

Why Action Frivolous

Claims previously resolved against

respondent through 2006

Bankruptcy Court Judgment

Claims previously resolved against

respondent through 2006

Bankruptcy Court Judgment

Claims previously resolved against

respondent through 2006

Bankruptcy Court Judgment

Claims previously resolved against

respondent through 2006

Bankruptcy Court Judgment

Claims previously resolved against

respondent through 2006

Bankruptcy Court Judgment

Claims previously released under

2008 settlement agreement between

Trustee and Wei Suen
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Action

Yan v. Fu, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-12-522566

Fu v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-10-501321

[cross-complaint]

Yan v. Fu, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-12-522566

Yan v. Lei, San Francisco

County Superior Court,

Case No. CGC-07-464671

Yan v. Lei, San Francisco

County Superior Court,

Case No. CGC-07-467500

Nature of Action

Pre-petition claims

against Wei Suen

Pre-petition claims

against Crystal Lei

Pre-petition claims

against Crystal Lei

Pre-petition claims

asserted after 2006

appointment of Trustee

and prior to 2009

Abandonment Order

Pre-petition claims

asserted after 2006

appointment of Trustee

and prior to 2009

Abandonment Order

-4-

Why Action Frivolous

Claims previously released under

2008 settlement agreement

between Trustee and Wei Suen

Claims previously released under

2008 settlement agreement

between Trustee and Crystal Lei

Claims previously released under

2008 settlement agreement

between Trustee and Crystal Lei

At time action filed, claims were

property of the bankruptcy estate

and respondent had no authority

to assert claims on behalf of the

bankruptcy estate

At time action filed, claims were

property of the bankruptcy estate

and respondent had no authority

to assert claims on behalf of the

bankruptcy estate
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Action

Yan v. Lei, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-08-471333

Nature of Action

Pre-petition claims

asserted after 2006

appointment of Trustee

and prior to 2009

Abandonment Order

Why Action Frivolous

At time action filed, claims were

property of the bankruptcy estate

and respondent had no authority

to assert claims on behalf of the

bankruptcy estate

15. Yan v. Fu, San Francisco

County Superior Court

Case No. CGC-12-522566

Pre-petition claims

asserted after 2011

revocation of the

Abandonment Order

After February 18, 2011, all

claims arising from pre-petition

events reverted to the bankruptcy

estate and respondent had no

authority to assert these claims on

behalf the bankruptcy estate

16. Cheuk Tin Yan v. Lei,

San Francisco County

Superior Court Case No.

CGC-08-478364

Pre-petition claims

asserted after 2006

appointment of Trustee

and prior to 2009

Abandonment Order

Respondent caused his father to

file the action, which

respondent’s father acknowledged

was not meritorious.

COUNT TWO
("The Chenery Property")

Case No. 14-O-05531
Business and Professions Code, section 6106

[Moral Turpitude]

3. By pursuing 16 frivolous actions over a five-year period with bad intent and for the

purpose of harassment, as set forth in the December 23, 2013 decision of the Bankruptcy Court

determining respondent to be a vexatious litigant in In re Demas Wai Yan, U.S. Bankruptcy

Court for Northern Dist. of Califomia, Case No. 04-33526 [Adv. Proc. No. 12-3129] ("Vexatious

Litigant Determination") [A true and correct copy of the Vexatious Litigant Determination is
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attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein], respondent

committed acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty or corruption in willful violation of

Business and Professions Code, section 6106.

COUNT THREE
("The Chenery Property")

Case No. 14-O-05531
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(c)

[Maintaining an Unjust Action]

4. Respondent failed to counsel or maintain such action, proceedings, or defenses only

as appear to respondent legal or just, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code,

section 6068(c), as follows:

A. By filing a frivolous appeal of the Vexatious Litigant Determination and December

23, 2013 Bankruptcy Court Order of Dismissal in Yan v. Fu, U.S. District Court,

Northern District of California, Case No. 3:14-cv-00085-RS.

B. By filing a frivolous appeal of the Vexatious Litigant Determination and December

23, 2013 Bankruptcy Court Order of Dismissal before the Ninth Circuit in Yan v. Fu,

U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, Case No. 14-16937.

C. By filing a frivolous appeal of the March 30, 2011 Bankruptcy Court Order of

Dismissal in Yan v. Fu, U.S. District Court, Northern District of California, Case No.

3:11-cv-01814-RS.

D. By filing a frivolous appeal of the March 30, 3011 Bankruptcy Court Order of

Dismissal in Yan v. Fu, U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, Case No. 12-

15204.

E. By filing a frivolous Motion to Alter or Amend the Bankruptcy Court’s February 28,

2011 order in Yan v. Fu, Adv. Proc. No. 3152-TC.

F. By filing a frivolous Motion to Strike the First Amended Complaint in Lei v. Yan, San

Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-541875.
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COUNT FOUR
("The Chenery Property")

Case No. 14-O-05531
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(g)

[Corrupt Motive]

5. Respondent commenced or continued an action or proceeding for a corrupt motive of

9assion or interest, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code section 6068(g), as

follows:

A. By pursuing 16 frivolous actions over a five-year period, as set forth in the December

23, 2013 decision of the Bankruptcy Court determining respondent to be a vexatious

litigant in In re Demas Wai Yan, U.S. Bankruptcy Court for Northern Dist. of

California, Case No. 04-33526 [Adv. Proc. No. 12-3129] ("Vexatious Litigant

Determination"). A true and correct copy of the Vexatious Litigant Determination is

attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

B. By filing a frivolous appeal of the Vexatious Litigant Determination and December

23, 2013 Bankruptcy Court Order of Dismissal in Yan v. Fu, U.S. District Court,

Northern District of California, Case No. 3:14-cv-00085-RS.

C. By filing a frivolous appeal of the Vexatious Litigant Determination and December

23, 2013 Bankruptcy Court Order of Dismissal before the Ninth Circuit in Yan v. Fu,

U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, Case No. 14-16937.

D. By filing a frivolous appeal of the March 30, 2011 Bankruptcy Court Order of

Dismissal in Yan v. Fu, U.S. District Court, Northern District of California, Case No.

3:11-cv-01814-RS.

E. By filing a frivolous appeal of the March 30, 3011 Bankruptcy Court Order of

Dismissal in Yan v. Fu, U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, Case No. 12-

15204.

F. By filing a frivolous Motion to Alter or Amend the Bankruptcy Court’s February 28,

2011 order in Yan v. Fu, Adv. Proc. No. 3152-TC.

G. By filing a frivolous Motion to Strike the First Amended Complaint in Lei v. Yan, San

Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-541875.
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COUNT FIVE
("The Chenery Property")

Case No. 14-O-05531
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(b)

[Failure to Maintain Respect for Court]

6. Respondent failed to maintain respect due to the courts of justice and judicial officers

by failing to obey the court order of June 24, 2014 in Yan v. Fu, U.S. Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, Case No. 12-15204, requiring respondent to pay sanctions in the amount of

$35,004.71, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code section, 6068(b).

COUNT SIX
("The Chenery Property")

Case No. 14-O-05531
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(0)(3)

[Failure to Report Judicial Sanctions]

7. Respondent failed to report to the agency charged with attorney discipline, in writing,

within 30 days of the time respondent had knowledge of the imposition of judicial sanctions

against respondent, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code section, 6068(0)(3), as

follows:

A.

Bo

Co

$3,000 in sanctions ordered by the court on May 31,2011, in In re Demas Wai Yan,

U.S. Bankruptcy Court for Northern Dist. of California, Case No. 04-33526 [Adv.

Proc. No. 3152-TC].

$1,200 in sanctions ordered by the court on March 5, 2012, in In re Demas Wai Yan,

U.S. Bankruptcy Court for Northern Dist. of California, Case No. 04-33526 [Adv.

Proc. No. 3152-TC].

$53,910 in sanctions ordered by the court on June 6, 2016, in Lei v. Yan, San

Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-541875.
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COUNT SEVEN
("The Li Lawsuits")

Case No. 16-O-10733
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(c)

[Maintaining an Unjust Action]

8. Respondent failed to counsel or maintain such action, proceedings, or defenses only

as appear to respondent legal or just, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code,

section 6068(c), as follows:

A. By pursuing a frivolous appeal on or about January 10, 2014, in Li v. Yan, Court of

Appeal, First Appellate District, Division Two, Case No. A140798.

B. By filing a frivolous "Joint Motion for Sanctions" on or about May 4, 2015, in Li v.

Chiu, San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-537574.

COUNT EIGHT
("The Li Lawsuits")

Case No. 16-O-10733
Business and Professions Code, section 6106

[Moral Turpitude]

9. On or about July 16, 2015, respondent faxed a pleading entitled "Defaulted Defendanl

Demas Yan’s Notice of Motion and Motion for Order Quashing Subpoena Duces Tecum"

("Motion to Quash") to JPMorgan Chase in relation to a subpoena issued by the plaintiff in Li v.

Chiu, San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-537574, wherein respondent

falsely represented that the Motion to Quash had been filed in court and falsely represented that a

court date had been scheduled on the issue, when respondent knew or was grossly negligent in

not knowing the statement(s) were false, and thereby committed an act involving moral

turpitude, dishonesty or corruption in willful violation of Business and Professions Code, section

6106.

-9-



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

COUNT NINE
("The Li Lawsuits")

Case No. 16-O-10733
Business and Professions Code, section 6103

[Failure to Obey a Court Order]

10. Respondent disobeyed or violated an order of the court requiring respondent to do or

forbear an act connected with or in the course of respondent’s profession which respondent ought

in good faith to do or forbear, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code, section

6103, as follows:

A. By failing to obey the court’s order of June 10, 2015, in Li v. Chiu, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-537574, requiring respondent to pay

$4,250 in sanctions for discovery abuses.

B. By failing to obey the court’s order of June 10, 2015, in Li v. Chiu, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-537574, requiring respondent to pay

$4,250 in sanctions for filing a frivolous motion for sanctions.

COUNT TEN
("The Li Lawsuits")

Case No. 16-O-10733
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(b)

[Failure to Maintain Respect for Court]

11. Respondent failed to maintain respect due to the courts of justice and judicial of-fleers

in willful violation of Business and Professions Code, section 6068(b), as follows:

A. By failing to obey the court’s order of May 28, 2013 in Li v. Yah, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990, requiring respondent to pay

$1,200 in sanctions.

B. By failing to obey the court’s order of August 12, 2013 in Li v. Yah, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990, requiring respondent to appear on

September 10, 2013.

C. By failing to obey the court’s order of September 10, 2013 in Li v. Yah, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990, requiring respondent to appear on

October 23, 2013.
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D. By falling to obey the court’s order of May 19, 2015 in Li v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990, requiring respondent to appear on

June 9, 2015.

E. By failing to obey the court’s order of July 2, 2015 in Li v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990, requiring respondent to pay

$1,275 in sanctions.

F. By failing to obey the court’s order of January 28, 2016 in Li v. Yan, Court of Appeal,

First Appellate District, Division Two, Case No. A140798, requiring respondent to

pay $9,000 in sanctions.

COUNT ELEVEN
("The Li Lawsuits")

Case No. 16-O-10733
Business and Professions Code, section 6068(0)(3)

[Failure to Report Judicial Sanctions]

12. Respondent failed to report to the agency charged with attorney discipline, in

writing, within 30 days of the time respondent had knowledge of the imposition of judicial

sanctions against respondent, in willful violation of Business and Professions Code section,

6068(o)(3), as follows:

A. $1,200 in sanctions ordered by the court on October 28, 2013, in Li v. Yan, San

Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990.

B. $1,275 in sanctions ordered by the court on July 2, 2015, in Li v. Yan, San Francisco

County Superior Court Case No. CGC-10-497990.

C. $9,000 in sanctions ordered by the court on January 28, 2016, in Li v. Yan, Court of

Appeal, First Appellate District, Division Two, Case No. A140798.
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COUNT TWELVE
("The Garcia Lawsuits")
Case No. 16-O-13600

Business and Professions Code, section 6068(d)
[Seeking to Mislead a Judge]

13. Respondent made false statements that respondent knew were false and thereby

sought to mislead the judge or judicial officer by an artifice or false statement of fact or law, in

willful violation of Business and Professions Code, section 6068(d), as follows:.

A. On or about February 24, 2016, respondent filed a Notice of Stay of Proceedings in

Garcia v. Champion, San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-

540994, wherein respondent falsely stated that an automatic stay applied to all

parties, when in fact, the automatic stay only applied to the debtor in the bankruptcy

proceedings, In re Chuan Tang, U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of

California, Case No. 16-30196.

B. On or about February 24, 2016, respondent filed a Notice of Stay of Proceedings in

Garcia v. Champion, San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-15-

546698, wherein respondent falsely stated that an automatic stay applied to all

parties, when in fact, the automatic stay only applied to the debtor in the bankruptcy

proceedings, In re Chuan Tang, U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of

California, Case No. 16-30196.

COUNT THIRTEEN
("The Garcia Lawsuits")
Case No. 16-O-13600

Business and Professions Code, section 6106
[Moral Turpitude - Misrepresentation]

14. Respondent made false statements which respondent knew or was grossly negligent

in not knowing the statement(s) were false, and thereby committed an act involving moral

turpitude, dishonesty or corruption in willful violation of Business and Professions Code, section

6106, as follows:

A. On or about February 24, 2016, respondent filed a Notice of Stay of Proceedings in

Garcia v. Champion, San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-14-
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540994, wherein respondent falsely stated that an automatic stay applied to all parties:

when in fact, the automatic stay only applied to the debtor in the bankruptcy

proceedings, In re Chuan Tang, U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of

California, Case No. 16-30196.

On or about February 24, 2016, respondent filed a Notice of Stay of Proceedings in

Garcia v. Champion, San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CGC-15-

546698, wherein respondent falsely stated that an automatic stay applied to all parties,

when in fact, the automatic stay only applied to the debtor in the bankruptcy

proceedings, In re Chuan Tang, U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of

California, Case No. 16-30196.

NOTICE - INACTIVE ENROLLMENT!

YOU ARE HEREBY FURTHER NOTIFIED THAT IF THE STATE BAR
COURT FINDS, PURSUANT TO BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
SECTION 6007(c), THAT YOUR CONDUCT POSES A SUBSTANTIAL
THREAT OF HARM TO THE INTERESTS OF YOUR CLIENTS OR TO
THE PUBLIC, YOU MAY BE INVOLUNTARILY ENROLLED AS AN
INACTIVE MEMBER OF THE STATE BAR. YOUR INACTIVE
ENROLLMENT WOULD BE IN ADDITION TO ANY DISCIPLINE
RECOMMENDED BY THE COURT.

NOTICE - COST ASSESSMENT!

IN THE EVENT THESE PROCEDURES RESULT IN PUBLIC
DISCIPLINE, YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO THE PAYMENT OF COSTS
INCURRED BY THE STATE BAR IN THE INVESTIGATION, HEARING
AND REVIEW OF THIS MATTER PURSUANT TO BUSINESS AND
PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 6086.10.

Respectfully submitted,

DATED: October 11~ 2016

THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA

y~2E OF CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL

SUSA ~VI. KAGAN
Senior Trial Counsel
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¯ Entered on Dock
December.24, ~013
GLORIA L FRANKMN, CLERK
U,S BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CAUFORNIA

Signed and Filed: December 23, 2013

THOMAS E. CARLSON U.S. Bankruptcy Judge

9

i0

11

12

1.3

14

/
re

WAI YAN,

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Case No. 04-33526 TEC

:i"5 DEMAS WAI YAN,

Debtor.

16 Plaintiff,

FU,.STELLA CHEN, WEI SUEN,
FU, and CRYSTAL LE!,

18

1.9

20

)

)

)
)
).
)
)
)
)

)
Defendants.

Chapter 7

Adv. Proc. No. 12-3129 TC

Upon due consideration~ and for the reasons stated in the

accompanying Memorandum Decision, the court hereby orders as

ORDER DETERMINING DEMAS YAN
TO BE A VEXATIOUS. LITIGANT

28

27

21         ORDER DETERMINING DEMAS YAN TO BEAVEXATIOUS ~LITI~ANT

22       This case came before the cou<t on Defendant Tony Fu’s motion

23 for an order determiningPla~ntiff Demas Yan to be a vexatious.

24 litigant. Pla~ntiff Demas Yah appeared in pro per. Defendant Tony

25 Fu appearedin pro per. Michael J. Betz appeared for Defendant,

26 Crystal Lei, who joined Mr. Fu’s motion.



1

2

3

.:

(i) Demas Yah is determined to be a vexatious litigant.

(2) Demas Yan is prohibited from filing ~ny action in this

~ourt against Tony Fu, Stella Chen, Wei Suen, Bryant Fu, and Crystal

5 Lei (Defendants) without prior authorization from a judge of this

6 court.¯

7 (3) Prior to filing any action in this court against any of

8 DefendantS, Demas Yah shall file, but not serve., a request for leave

9 to file such action and attach as an exhibit the proposed complaint.

i0 <4) This court may-resolve any request for leave to file

ii a hearing and without comments from Defendants. If

12 appropriate, the court may set a hearing on the request and/or

13 Defendants to file oppositioh. The courtwill enter an order

14 iranting or denying each request for leave to file.

15 (5) The Clerk is directed not to accept for filing any

16 )laint by Demas Yan against any of Defendants unless Yan has

17. obtained an order from a judge of this.court granting Yan leave to

18 file the complaint in question.

¯ 19 (6) Any request for leave to file subject to this order shall

20 assigned to the above-signed judgeas a proceeding related to the

21 Yan bankruptcycase, .so long ~as the above-Signed judge continues to

22 serve on this court.

23 ~**END OF ORDER**

24

25

26.

27

28

ORDER DETERMINING DEMAS YAN

TO BE A VEXATIOUS LITIGANT -2-
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Entered on Doc ..... -
December 24, 2013
GLORIA L. FRANKLIN, CLERK
U,S BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTHERN DlffrR|C~" OF CAL/FORN|A

Signed and Filed: December 23, 2013
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10 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

II

12 ’In re

13 DEMAS WAI YAN,

14

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Case No. 04-33526 TEC

Chapter 7

15 DEMAS WAI YAN,

16

17

18

Debtor.

Plaintiff,

VS.

’FU, STELLA CHEN, WEI "SUEN,
19 BRYANT FU, and CRYSTAL LEI,

20 Defendants.

Adv. Proc. No. 12-3129 TC

21

22
MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING DEMAS YAN

TO BE A VEXATIOUS LITIGANT

23 This case came before the court on Defendant Tony Fu’s motion

24 for an order determining Demas Yan to be a vexatious litigant.

25 Plaintiff Demas Yah (Yan) appeared in pro per. Defendant Tony Fu

26 (Fu) appeared in pro per~ Michael J. Betz appeared for Defendant

27 Crystal Lei (Lei). The court hereby issues the following memorandum

28 decision, which shall constitute its findings of facts and
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1 ions of law

2 I~ODUCTION

3       This bankruptcy case has been pending before this court for

4       thannine years. The assets of the bankruptcy ~state have been

5 liquidated, and all allowed claims have been paid in fulI .with

6 interest. All of Demas Yan’s pre-petition claims against Defendants

7 have either been settled by Trustee, adjudicated against Yan or

8 remain property of the estate,~ never to be abandoned to Yan. In

9 this action, Yan asserts pre-petition claims that were either

i0 y rejected by a final order of this court or released by

II settlement agreements. The present action is the fifth that Yan has

12 improperly con~nenced against Defendants. For the reasons set forth

13 below, the court determines that Yah is a vexatious litigant and

14 that he must obtain leave of court prior to commencing any future

i5 lawsuit against any of the Defendants in this court.

16 FACTS

17 i. Joint Venture Between Yan and Fu. In February 2000, Yan

18 9d a single-~amily residence at 663 Chenery Street, San

19 sco, California (the Chenery Property). On October 18, 2000,

20 Zan and Defendant Fu entered into a written joint-venture agreement

21 to convert the Chenery Property into several condominium units. Yan

22 was to contribute the Chenery Property and certain costs of

23 construction and receive 75 percent of the sale proceeds. Fu was to

24 supervise construction and supply additional costs of construction

25 and receive 25 percent of the sale proceeds. Fu later assigned all

26 of his rights under the joint venture agreement to Defendant Wei

27 Suen (Suen).

28 2. Secured Promissory Note from Yan to Chen. On November 12,

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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1 2002, Yan executed a promissory note in favor of Defendarft Stella

2 Chen (Chen) in the amount of $450,000 (the Chen Note), which was

3 secured by a deed of trust against the Chenery Property.

4 . 3. Pre-Petition Litiqation, Voluntary Bankruptcv Petition, and

5 On February 20, 2004, Yan filed an

6 action against Fu, Chen, and Suen in San Francisco Superior Court

7 seeking to prevent Chen from foreclosing under the Chen Note, and to

8 quiet title to the Chenery Property (the Pre-Petition Action). On

9 December 19, 2004, the San Francisco Superior Court denied Yan’s

I0 to stop Chen’s foreclosure. Yan filed a petition for relief

II under Chapter ii in this court. Protected by the automatic stay,

12 was able to sell the Chenery Property in his Chapter ii case at

13 a price sufficient to pay all allowed secured and unsecured claims

14 in full. Chen’s secured claim and the Fu/Suen joint-venture

15 interest attached to the sale proceeds.

16 4. The Bankruptcy Court Judqment. On January 25, 2005, Chen

17 filed an adversary proceeding against Yan in this court to determine

18 the enforceability of the Chen Note and deed of trust (A.P. Case No.

19 5-3236-TC).

20 On March 17, 2005, Chen removed the Pre-Petition Action to this

21 court (A.P. Case No. 05-3257-T~), and the court consolidated that

22 action with the Chen adversary proceeding. The court held a multi-

23 day bench trial in the consolidated action.

24 On March 3, 2006, this court entered a judgment that determined

25 the respective rights of all parties regarding the Chenery Property

26 (the Bankruptcy Court Judgment). The court awarded Chen $767,655 in

27 ’ )al, interest, attorney fees, and costs. .The court determined

28 that Yan owed nothing to Fu or Suen. Of central importance here,

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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1 the court also determined that Yan had no enforceable claims against

2 Fu, Suen, or Chen.

3 5. ADpeals from the Bankruptcy Court Judc[ment. Yan, Suen, and

4 Zhen all appealed t~ the District Court. Yan’s appeal was

5 dismissed. Chen’s appeal of the disallowance of part of her claim

6 was settled (See Part 8, below). Suen prevailed in her appeal from

7~ this court’s determination that Fu was barred from sharing the

8 joint-venture proceeds because he was an unlicensed contractor.

9 Suen later reached a settlement with the Trustee (See Part II,

I0 below). Of central importance here, the District Court’s decision

ii did not disturb .the bankruptcy court’s determination that Yan had no

12 enforceable claims against Fu arising out of the joint venture.

13 6. Trustee Becomes Estate Representative. On May12, 2006, the

14 bankruptcy court ordered the appointment of a trustee, and the

15 United States Trustee selected Janina M. Hoskins (formerly Janina Mo

16 Elder) to serve as the Chapter ii Trustee (the Trustee).

17 7. Claims Filed Aqainst the Estate by Crystal Lei. Fu’s

~18 ex-wife, Crystal Lei, filed two proofs of claim against Yan’s

19 ptcy estate. On March 29, 2006, Lei filed a general unsecured

20 claim for $67,937, based on Yan’s alleged breach of contract (Claim

21 ii-i). On October 13, 2006, Lei filed a second unsecured claim

22 for $88,155, based on Yan’s alleged failure to repay an installment

23 note (Claim No. 16-1).

24 8. Trustee’s Settlement with Chen. On July 24, 200.6, this

25 court approved a settlement agreement between Trustee and Chen,

26 resolving the amount due under the Chen Note. The settlement

27 agreement required Trustee to pay Chen $818,198 and contained the

28 following release:

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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23

24

25

26

27

28

1 the respective Parties to this Agreement, each acting
on ... her own behalf ... do forever discharge the

2 other ... in all capacities, including individually,
from any and al~ actions, liabilities, ... claims,

3 [etc.] of every kind, nature and description,
¯ including, but not limited to, tort, arising out of the

4 facts alleged with regard to Chen Proceeding. The
Parties acknowledge and agree that the foregoing

. . 5 releases shall extend to any and all adversary
proceedings, proofs of claim or any other claims by or

6 against any Party hereto, their assignors and the
Debtor.

7

8 The settlement agreement also includes, a waiver of each party’s

9 rights under California Civil Code section 1542. No appeal ~as

10 taken from this court’s order approving the settlement.

ii 9. Conversion to Chapter 7 and Discharqe of Yan. On September

12 15, 2006, the court entered an order converting this bankruptcy case

13 to Chapter 7. Hoskins continued to serve as Trustee. On June 26,

14 2007, this court entered an order granting Yan a discharge.

15 I0. Yan’s Unauthorized State-Court Actions Assertinq Pre-

16 Petition Claim~ Owned by the Estate. On June 27, 2007, without

17 ion of this court or Trustee, Yan filed an action against Fu

18 :nd Lei in San Francisco Superior State Court (Case No. 07-464671)

19 (the First State-Court Action). That action asserted claims for

20 fraud, quiet title, and conversion based on pre-petition events

21 regarding the Chenery Property and Lei’s pre-petition purchase of

22 real property located on 28th Avenue in San Francisco. Yan did not

have authority to bring those claims because they were property of

the estate, pursuant to section 541.(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, and

because Trustee was the only party authorized to prosecute claims of

the estate.

On July 26, 2007, Trustee removed the First State-Court Action

to this court (A.P. Case No. 07-3082-TC). On January 8, 2008, this

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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i zourt dismissed the claims against Fu with prejudice on the basis

2 that they were barred by the preclusive effect of the Bankruptcy

3 Court Judgment. The court dismissed the claims against Lei without

4 prejudice on the basis that those claims could be asserted only by

5 Trustee.

6 On September 24, 2007, Yan filed another action against Fu and

7 Lei in San Francisco Superior Court asserting claims for libel and

8 slander based upon statements allegedly made by the defendants post-

9 petition and post-conversion (Case No. 07-467500) (the Second State-

I0 Court Action). Although the original complaint in the Second State-

II Court Action alleged only claims arising post-conversion, Yan’s

12 second amended complaint alleges only pre-petition claims for breach

13 of fiduciary duty, unjust enrichment, and fraudulent transfer

14 regarding the Chenery Property, the same transaction at issue in the

15 Bankruptcy Court Judgment.I The second amended complaint attempted

16 to dodge the pre-petition nature of the claims by alleging Yan did

17 not discover the facts underlying his claims until November 2006.

18 Yan dismissed this action on December 13, 2011.

19 On January 24, 2008, again without permission of this court or

20 Trustee, Yan filed another action against Fu and Lei in San

21 Francisco Superior Court asserting that, sometime prior to February

22 2001, Yan hired Fu and Lei to provide construction services at 547

23 23rd Avenue, San Francisco, California and at the Chenery Property,

24 that Yah paid Fu and Lei for such services, and that Yan is entitled

25 to recoup such payments under California law because Fu and Lei were

26

27

28 i Yan filed the second amended complaint in 2009, after this
court entered an order temporarily abandoning all remaining assets
of the estate to him. See Part 14, below.
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6

7

8

9

i0

1 not licensed contractors (Case No. 08-471333) (the Third State-Court

2         ). Yah dismissed this action on July 16, 2008.

3        ii. Trustee’s Settlements with Lei and Suen. On March 4, 2008,

4 the court approved Trustee’s settlement with Suen. The settlement

5 agreement provides that the parties mutually agreet0waive:

any and all claims arising out of this particular
transaction [Chenery Property], that is, the subject
matter, of this case and ... include[s] a waiver of all-
claims known or unknown ...

appeal was taken from the order approving the settlement.

On May 29, 2008, the court approved a settlement agreement

Ii between Trustee and Leio The Lei settlement agreement required

12 trustee to pay Lei $45,000 in satisfaction of Lei’s two filed claims

13 and included a broad mutual release of all known and unknown claims

14 of Lei and Trustee:

15

16

17

18

19

2O

the respective Parties to this Agreement, each acting
on her own behalf ... do forever discharge the other
... in all capacities, including individually, from
any and all actions, liabilities, liens, debts,
damages, torts, claims, suits., judgments, executions
and demand of every kind, nature and description,
arising in the Case, and relating to the assets,
liabilities and administration of the Case and Estate.
The Parties acknowledge and agree that the foregoing
releases extend to adversary proceedings and proofs of
claim in the Case.

21 Lei settlement also includes a waiver of California Civil Code

22 section 1542 and a clause entitling the prevailing party to recover

23 attorney fees related to enforcement of the settlement. No appeal

24 was taken from the order approving the settlement.

25 Thus, by June 2008, Trustee had released all of the estate’s

26 claims against Lei, Suen, and Chen.

27 12. State-Court Action Filed by Yan’~ Father. On August 7,

28 2008, Yan’s father, Cheuk Tin Yan, filed an action against Fu and

M~MORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
DEMAS YANAVEXATIOES L~TIGANT -7-



8

9

i0

1 in San Francisco Superior Court for fraud, quiet title,

2 conversion, and unjust enrichment (Case No. 08-478364) (the Cheuk

3 Tin Yan Action). The complaint is virtually identical to the

4 complaint filed by Yan in the First State-Court Action and concerns

5 events regarding the Chenery Property. The only

¯ 6 al difference between the First State-Court Action and the

7 Cheuk Tin Yan Action is the substitution of Yan’s father for Yan as

At a deposition, Yan’s father testified that: (I) he did not

Lei; (2) he did not believe Lei owed him money; (3) he was

Ii unaware of the majority of the factual allegations in the complaint;

12 (4) he cannot read or write English; and (5) he had not read any of

13 the pleadings, but signed them because his son (Yan) told him to.

14 See Case No. 10-3149, Docket No. 21, Exh. I.

15        13. Approval of Final Account and Payment of All Claims. On

16         18, 2009, this court approved Trustee’Is final account, which

17~provided for payment of all allowed claims in full with interest.

18~On April 9, 2009, the court entered an order authorizing Trustee to

19~ipay all allowed claims in full and requiring Trustee to retain all

20 surplus funds (approximately $380,000) pending a determination of

21 disputed claims.

22 14. Abandonment of Pre-Petition Claims to Yan. On June 15,

23 2009, the court entered an order abandoning to Yan the bankruptcy

24 estate’s interest in all remaining pre-petition causes of action

25 (the Abandonment Order). The court did so because Trustee

26 stipulated to abandonment, and because the estate appeared to have

27 surplus funds after payment of all valid claims.

28 15. Fu’s Defamation Action and Yan’s Cross-Claims. On July 6,

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

I0

ii

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

010, Fu filed an action against Yah in San Francisco Superior Court

for defamation (Case No. 10-501321) (the Fu Defamation Action). In

response, Yah filed counter-claims against Fu and cross-claims

against Chen, Lei, Suen, and Bryant Fu asserting claims arising from

acts committed prior to the petition date .(December 19, 2004).

On August 31, 2010, Chen removed the Fu Defamation Action to

this court (A.P. Case No. I0-3152-TC).

16. The Februarv 18, 2011 Order. On February 18, 2011, this

court entered orders: (a) vacating the Abandonment Order, because of

Yan’s continuous misconduct of improperly asserting claims against

Defendants that had been previously adjudicated or released (the

Order Vacating Abandonment); (b) granting Chen, Lei, and Suen’s

motion for summary judgment on the cross-claims asserted by Yan,

because those claims had been released by settlement agreements

entered into with Trustee; and (c) granting Fu’s motion to dismiss

the counter-claims asserted by Yan, because those claims were barred

by claim and issue preclusion. As a result of the Order Vacating

Abandonment, all of Yan’s pre-petition claims reverted back to the

estate and can be asserted only by Trustee; Yan will never have

authority to assert any pre-petition claims against any party.

Yan was afforded the opportunity to file an amended cross-

complaint in the Fu Defamation Action asserting only post-petition

claims, but instead filed a motion to reconsider the February 18th

Order (the Motion to Reconsider). On March 30, 2011, the court

denied the Motion to Reconsider. Yan did not appeal this order.

Also on March 30, 2011, the court entered an order dismissing

with prejudice Yan’s cross-complaint against Chen, Lei, Suen, Fu,

and Bryant Fu. Yan appealed this order. In December 2011, the

MEMORANDUMDECISION DETERMINING
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I District Court affirmed this court’s order.

2        On May 31, 2012, Fu dismissed his complaint against Yan.

3        17. Sanctions~Aqainst Yah. On May 31, 2011, the court entered

4 an order sanctioning Yah $3,000 pursuant to Rule 9011(b), because it

5 found that Yan frivolously filed the Motion to Reconsider. Yan

6 appealed, but the District Court affirmed.

7 On March 5, 2012, the court entered an order sanctioning Yan

8 $1,200 for failing to pay $3,000 to Lei, Suen, and Bryant Fu

9 to the May 31st order.

I0 Yan ultimately paid both sanctions.

ii 18. The Current Action. On July 20, 2012, Yan filed an action

12 against Lei, Fu, Shen, Chen, and Bryant Fu in San Francisco Superior

13 State Court (Case No. 12-522566) that asserts six claims for relief

14 (thle. Current Action).

15 The first claim for relief alleges intentional infliction of

16 ~motional distress based on actions of Fu andLei related to the

17 Chenery Property and unauthorized practice of law by Fu and Lei.

18 The second claim for relief seeks damages for breach of

19 fiduciary duty based on actions of Fu and Lei related to the Chenery

20 Property and unauthorized practice of law.

21 The third claim for relief vaguely asserts that in 2000 Fu and

22 Lei divorced as a ploy to shield their assets from Fu’s creditors.

23 The fourth claim for relief asserts that Fu and Lei, whom are

24 not licensed to practice law in California, assisted Charles Li in

25 initiating actions against Yan in this court and in state court.

26 The fifth claim for relief asserts that Fu maliciously brought

27 the Defamation Action against Yan.

28 The sixth claim for relief seeks a judicial determination of

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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1 s rights with respect to his claims for relief for intentional

2 infliction of emotional distress and breach of fiduciary duty.

3 On Aughst 28,2012, Fu removed the.Current Action to this ~court

4 (A.P. Case No. 12-3129-TC).

5       On August 29, 2012, FU filed a Rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss

6      a motion for an order determining Yan a vexatious litigant. Lei

7~ joined both motions.

8           ~TION

9       I conclude that this court has subject-matter jurisdiction over

10 the present motion under 28 U.S.C. § 1334(b), and that the motion is

11 ~ core.proceeding under 28 U.S.C. ~ 157(b) (2) (A) and (0). This is

12 so, because the actions of Debtor that are the basis for the relief

13 requested are inextricably intertwined with the administration of

14 the bankruptcy case, because the essence of the conduct that gives

15 rise to the relief requested is Debtor’s failure to abide by (a)

16 provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, (b) orders and judgments of the

17 Bankruptcy Court, and (c) settlements properly negotiated by the

18 bankruptcy trustee, and because the particular basis for the relief

19 sought could never arise outside of a bankruptcy case.

20 DISCUSSION

21 Federal courts have discretion to enjoin parties from frivolous

22 litigation. See Molski v. Everqreen Dynasty CorD., 500 F.3d 1047,

23 1057 (gth Cir. 2007); Weissman v. Quail Lodqe, Inc., 179 F.3d 1194,

24 197 (9th Cir. 1999); De Lonq v. Hennessey, 912 F.2d 1144, 1147 (9th

25 Cir. 1990) (citing TriDati v. Beaman, 878 F.2d 351, 352 (10th Cir.

26 1989)). ~Bankruptcy courts, being courts established by Act of

27 Congress, ~have the power to regulate vexatious litigation pursuant

28 to Ii U.S.C. ~ 105 and 28 U.S.C. § 1651.’" Goodman v. Cal. Portland

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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1 Holdinqs~ LLC), 420 B.R. i, Ii (Bankr.

2 D. Ariz. 2009) (quoting Lakusta v. Evans (In re Lakusta), 2007 WL

3 2255230, *3 (N.D. Cai.2007))...

4 Before imposing a pre~filing order against a vexatious

5 litigant, the court must: (i) give the litigant notice and an

6 ~pportunity to be heard; (2) compile an adequate record for review;

7 (3) make substantive findings as to the frivolous or harassing

8 nature of the litigant’s actions; and (4) draft an order that is

9 "narrowly tailored to closely fit the specific vice encountered~"

i0 912 F.2d at 1147-48. The Ninth Circuit observed that the

Ii factors set forth in .Safir vl U.S. Lines, Inc., 792 F.2d 19 (2d Cir.-

12 1986) provide a helpful framework for determining whether the

13 litigant’s prior actions were sufficiently frivolous and whether the

14 remedial action is sufficiently narrow. Molski, 500 F.3d at 1058.

15 The Safir factors are: (a) the litigant’s history of litigation and

16 in particular whether it entailed vexatious, harassing or

17 duplicative lawsuits; (b) whether the litigant had an objective good

18 faith expectation of prevailing in those actions; (c) whether the

19 litigant was represented by counsel; (d) whether the litigant caused

20 needless expense to other parties or imposed an unnecessary burden

21 on the courts and their personnel; and (e) whether other sanctions

22 would be adequate to protect the courts and other parties. Safi___~r,

23 792 F.2d at 24.

24        i. Notice and Opportunitv to be Heard. Notice and an

25    )ortunity to be heard before entry of a pre-filing order "is a

26 core requirement of due process." Molski, 500 F.3d at 1058. In

27 this case, Yan initially was not properly served with the Motion and

28     did not appear at the initial hearing. After the initial

MEMORANDUM DECISION DETERMINING
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1 hearing, the court entered an order continuing the matter 30 days to

2 allow Yan adequate time to file opposition to the Motion. This

3 order was served on Yan andprovided Yan adequate notice of the

4 date, £ime,~and place of the continued hearing. Yan filed

5 opposition to the Motion and appeared at the continued hearing.

6 ingly, Yan had sufficient notice of the relief sought by Fu

7 and an adequate opportunity to be heard.

8 2. Adequate Record for Review. nAn adequate record for review

9 should include a listing of all the cases and motions that [leads]

i0 the court to conclude that a vexatious litigant order [is] needed."

ii 912 F.2d at 1147. "At the least, the record needs to show,

12 in some manner, that the litigant’s activities were numerous and

13 abusive." Id. (citations omitted). The findings of fact set forth

14 above list five complaints (including the cross-complaint in the Fu

15 Defamation Action) that Yah filed against Defendants asserting

16 claims that were either previously adjudicated by a final order or

17 had been released by settlement agreements. I find that Yan also

18.caused his father to file a complaint against Fu and Lei that (a)

19 the father acknowledged under oath he had no basis to file, and (b)

" 2~ that Yah had no basis to file on his own behalf because it concerned

21 the pre-petition events regarding the Chenery Property adjudicated

22 in the Bankruptcy Court Judgment. Finally, this court relies on the

23 misconduct described in its Memorandum Decision of February 18,

24 2011, which misconduct caused this court to take the unprecedented

25 action of revoking the Abandonment Order to prevent any further

26 harassment of Defendants by Yan.

27 3. Frivolous or Harassing Nature of Action. The court must make

28 "substantive findings as to the frivolous or harassing nature of the
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1 litigant’s actions." De Lonq, 912 F.2d at 1148. The court must

2 evaluate ~both the number and content of the findings as indicia’

3 of the frivolousness of the litigant"s:6~aims." The court should

4 employ the five Safi~ factors in making this evaluation. Se___~e

5           500 F.2d at 1058.

6             a. History of Litiqation. Set forth below is a summary of

7 the actions filed by Yan that were frivolous because the claims

8 asserted had been released, previously adjudicated, or belonged to

9 the bankruptcy estate.

i0 I/

ii

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
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1

2.

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

i0

ii

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Yan}s pre-
petition claims
against Chen

Yan’ s pre-
petition claims
against Fu
regarding the
Chenery Property

Yan’ s pre-
petition claims
against Suen

(I) August 9, 20i0 state-

court cross-complaint;2

(2) July 20, 2012 state-
court action.3

(I) June 27, 2007 state-
court action;~

(2~ September 24, 2007
state-court action;s

(3) January 24, 2008
state-court action;6

(4) August 9, 2010 state-
court cross-complaint;~

(5) July 20, 2012 state-
court action.8

(i) August 9, 2010 state-
court cross-complaint;8

(2) July 20, 2012 state-
court action.I°

Claims previously
released under 2008
settlement¯agreement
between Trustee and Chen

Claims previously
resolved against Yan
through the 2006
Bankruptcy Court Judgment

Claims previously
released under 2008
settlement agreement
between Trustee and Suen

2 S.F. Sup. Ct. Case No. 10-501321; Bankr. A.P. Case No. I0-
3152. Se___~e page 9 supra.

3 S.F. Sup. Ct. Case No. 12-522566; Bankr. A.P. Case No. 12-
3129. See pages i0-ii supra.

~ S.F. Sup. Ct. Case No. 07-464671; Bankr. A.P. Case No. 07-
Se__e pages 5-6 supra.

5 S.F. Sup. Ct. Case No. 07-467500.
Se___~e page 6 supra.

6 S.F. Sup. Ct. Case No. 08-471333.
See pages 6-7 supra.

7 Se___~e footnote 2 supra.

8 Se__e footnote 3 supra. ~

3082.

9 Se__e footnote 2 supra.

i0 Se__e footnote 3 supra.
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5

6

7

8

9

i0

Ii

2

3

4

Yan’s pre-
petition claims
against Lei

"Fre-petition
claims asserted
b~ Yan after 2006
appointment of
Trustee and prior
to 2009
Abandonment Order

Pre-petition
claims asserted
by Yan after 2011
revocation of
Abandonment Order

(1) August 9, 2010 state-
court cross-complaint;n

(2) July.20, 2012 state-
court action.12

(i) June 27, 2007 state-
court action;n

(2) September 24, 2007
state-court action;14

(3) January 24, 2008
state-court action.Is

July 20, 2012 state-court
action. (the current
action).16

Claims previously
released under 2008
settlement agreement
between Trustee and Lei

At the time action filed,.
claims were property of
the estate and Yan had no
authority to assert these
claims on behalf of the
estate

After February 18, 2011,
all claims arising from
pre-petition events
reverted to the estate
and Yan had no authority
to assert these claims on
behalf of the estate

12              b. Motive in Pursuing Litigation. I find that Yan pursued

13 frivolous litigation against Defendants for the purpose of

14 harassment. I infer bad intent because Yan filed six actions on

15 account of pre-petition claims that had been previously released by

16 Trustee (two actions against Chen, two actions against suen, and two

17 actions against Lei), because Yan filed five actions on account of

18 pre-petition claims that had been previously adjudicated by a final

19 order of this court (five actions against Fu), because Yan filed

20 three actions against one or more Defendants on account of claims

21 that had passed to the estate, and because Yan caused his father to

22

23
n See footno6e 2 supra.

24 --

25
Se___~e footnote 3 supra.

26 Se___~e footnote 4 supra.

14
27 Se__~e footnote 5 supra.

28 Se__~e footnote 6 supra.

I~ Se__~e footnote 3 supra.
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1 file an action against Fu and Lei that Yan’s father acknowledged was

2 not meritorious, and because Yan is an attorney and could understand

3 why these actions were improper. This consistent and repeated

4 or of asserting claims upon which relief could not be granted

5 demonstrates that Yan filed these lawsuits merely to harass

6 Defendants.

7 c. Whether Litiqant was Represented by Counsel. Yan is a

8 lawyer.

9 d. Needless Expense on Opposinq Parties and-Burden on th~

I0 Yan’s actions have forced one or more Defendants to undertake

Ii unnecessary expense to defend themselves against repeated non-

12 )us claims. This court .has expended considerable time and

13 resources on Yan’s frivolous actions.... -

14 e. Adequacv of Other Sanctions. Yan has a history of

15 disobeying orders of this court. In July 2011, the court entered an

16 order directing Yan to dismiss actions asserting pre-petition claims

17 against Defendants. In May 2011 and in March 2012, thi~ court

18 imposed monetary sanctions because of Yan’s attempts to relitigate

19 the Chenery claims. None of these orders deterred Yan. In July

20 2012, he filed the Current Action, in which he once again asserts

21 claims related to the Chenery Property that were previously

22 adjudicated by a final order of this court Or released by settlement

23 agreements. Thus, it appears that monetary sanctions are not

24 sufficient to deter Yan’s misconduct. I find that no sanction short

25 a pre-filing order will be sufficient to protect the court and

26 Defendants from further frivolous lawsuits.

27 4. Narrowly Tailored Order. The fourth and final De Long factor

28 is that the pre-filing order must be narrowly tailored to the
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i vexatious litigant’s wrongful behavior. In De Lona, the Ninth

2 Circuit found overly broad an order that barred plaintiff from

3 filing any lawsuit in a particular district court. 912 F.2d at

4 1148. In O’Louqhlin v. Doe, 920 F.2d 614, 618 (gth Cir. 1990), the

5 zourt held that an order requiring plaintiff to show good cause

6 before making any request to proceed in forma pauperis was not

7 narrowly tailored. In Moy v. U.S., 906 F.2d 467, 470 (9th Cir.

8 1990), the court held that an order requiring plaintiff to obtain

9 leave of court before filing any suit was overly broad, when the

I0 ~laintiff had been litigious with only one group of defendants.

II In contrast, the Ninth Circuit affirmed a pre-filing order that

12 ~pplied to only one type of lawsuit (actions under Title III of the

13 with Disabilities Act). Molski, 500 F.3d at 1061. The

14 court noted that the order covered only the type of claims that

15 plaintiff had been filing vexatiously. Id.

16 The pre-filing order issued here is consistent with Molsk~,

17 because it applies only to actions against the small group of

18 Defendants that Yan has repeatedly abused in this court.17 The pre-

19 filing review should extend to all causes of actions that Yan

20 asserts against Defendants -- those alleged to arise post-petition

21 as well as those arising pre-petition -- because Yan has attempted

22

23
i~ This court realizes that Yan has initiated most of his

abusive actions in state court, and that the accompanying order

24 does not directly limit Yan’s ability to file actions against
Defendants in any court other than this one. This court’s

25 determination that Yan is a vexatious litigant does, however, make
Yan a vexatious litigant under California law, and entitles-

26 Defendants to seek protection in state court against abusive suits
that Yan might file there. California C.C.P. ~ 391 et seq. This

27 court hopes that its summary of Yan’s prior actions, and its
explanation of why those actions were improper under federal

28 bankruptcy law, will be helpful to the California courts in
supervising any actions that Yan may initiate against Defendants in
the California court system.
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1 to conceal the pre-petition origins of his claims against

2 Defendants. If Yan asserts against any Defendant a valid claim for

3 relief that has not been previously adjudicated or released, and

4 that is not property of the estate, then the court will permit Yan

5 to proceed with that claim.

6 **END OF MEMORANDUMDECISION**
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DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY CERTIFIED AND REGULAR MAIL

RE:      YAN
CASE NOS.: 14-O-05531; 16-O-10733; 16-O-13600

I, the undersigned, over the age of eighteen (18) years, whose business address and place of
employment is the State Bar of California, 180 Howard Street, San Francisco, California
94105, declare that I am not a party to the within action; that I am readily familiar with the
State Bar of California’s practice for collection and processing of correspondence for mailing
with the United States Postal Service; that in the ordinary course of the State Bar of
California’s practice, correspondence collected and processed by the State Bar of California
would be deposited with the United States Postal Service that same day; that I am aware that
on motion of party served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage
meter date on the envelope or package is more than one day after date of deposit for mailing
contained in the affidavit; and that in accordance with the practice of the State Bar of
California for collection and processing of mail, I deposited or placed for collection and
mailing in the City and County of San Francisco, on the date shown below, a true copy of the
within

NOTICE OF DISCIPLINARY CHARGES

in a sealed envelope placed for collection and mailing as certified mail, return receipt
requested, and in an additional sealed envelope as regular mail, at San Francisco, on the date
shown below, addressed to:

Article No. 9414 7266 9904 2069 9449 48

DEMAS W. YAN
300 Frank H Ogawa
Oakland, CA 94612

Plz., Ste 218

in an inter-office mail facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California addressed to:

NIA

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct. Executed at San Francisco, California, on the date shown below.

DATED: October 11, 2016
"---D"~ffli Wi lliar~ ....

Declarant


